
 

 

                                

Page 1 

 

 

AGENDA                
 
 
Meeting: WILTSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

Place: Council Chamber - County Hall, Trowbridge BA14 8JN 

Date: Wednesday 11 January 2017 

Time: 10.00 am 

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Kevin Fielding, of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01249 706612 or email 
kevin.fielding@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
 

 
Membership: 
 
Cllr Junab Ali, Swindon Borough Council 
Cllr Abdul Amin, Swindon Borough Council 
Cllr Alan Bishop, Swindon Borough Council 
Cllr Richard Britton, Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Trevor Carbin, Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Chris Caswill, Wiltshire Council 
Cindy Creasy, Co-Opted Independent Member 
Chris Henwood, Co-Opted Independent Member 
Cllr Peter Hutton, Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Julian Johnson, Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Gordon King, Wiltshire Council 
Cllr John Smale, Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Caryl Sydney-Smith, Swindon Borough Council 
 

 

 
Substitutes: 
 
Cllr Charles Howard, Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Maureen Penny, Swindon Borough Council 
Cllr Chuck Berry, Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Sue Evans, Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Nick Fogg MBE, Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Linda Packard, Wiltshire Council 



 

 

                                

Page 2 

 

Cllr Ian Thorn, Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Anthony Trotman, Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Brian Dalton, Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Ernie Clark, Wiltshire Council 
 
RECORDING AND BROADCASTING NOTIFICATION 
Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 
Council’s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv.  At the start of the meeting, the 
Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and 
sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council. 
 
By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of 
those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes. 
 
The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public. 
  
Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability 
resulting from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings 
they accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 
relation to any such claims or liabilities. 
 
Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on the Council’s website along with this agenda and available on request. 
If you have any queries please contact Democratic Services using the contact details 
above. 

 
 

http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/


 

 
                                

Page 3 

 

 

AGENDA 

 
 

 Part I 

 Items to be considered when the meeting is open to the public 

 

1  Apologies for Absence  

 

2  Declarations of interest  

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee. 

 

3  Chairman's Announcements  

 

4   Public Participation  

 The Panel welcomes contributions from members of the public. 
 
Statements 
 
If you wish to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this agenda, 
please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting. Speakers are 
permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes on any agenda item. Please contact the 
officer named on the first page of the agenda for any further clarification. 
 
Questions 
 
Members of the public are able to ask questions in relation to the responsibilities 
and functions of the Panel at each meeting. Those wishing to ask questions are 
required to give notice of any such questions in writing to the Head of 
Democratic Services at Wiltshire Council no later than 5.00 pm on Thursday 5 
January 2017. Please contact the officer named on the first page of the agenda 
for further advice. Questions may be asked without notice if the Chairman 
decides that the matter is urgent. 

 

5   HMIC Value for Money Profiles  

 A brief presentation from Clive Barker to give some context to the Plan and the 
Precept items/discussions which will follow. 

 



 

 
                                

Page 4 

 

6   PCC Budget 2017/18 and MTFS (Pages 7 - 44) 

 Clive Barker to present the PCC’s Draft Budget Settlement for 2017/18, 
including the Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

 

7   Police and Crime Plan (Pages 45 - 62) 

 The refreshed Police and Crime Plan for Panel comments.  

 

8   Tri-Force collaboration programme  

 A verbal update on progress. 

 

9  Member Questions  

 

10   Task group updates  

  PCC Commissioning Strategy Task Group 
 

 Tri-Force Collaboration Task Group 

 

11   Forward Work Plan (Pages 63 - 66) 

 To note the forward work plan. 

 

12   Future meeting dates  

 To note the future meeting dates below: 
 

 Thursday 11 January 2017 – County Hall, Trowbridge 
 

 Thursday 2 February 2017 – Monkton Park Offices, Chippenham 
 

 Thursday 2 March 2017 – County Hall, Trowbridge 
 

 Thursday 29 June 2017 – Corn Exchange, Devizes 
 

 Thursday 7 September 2017 – City Hall, Salisbury 
 

 Wednesday 1 December 2017 – Swindon Borough Council Offices 
 

 

 Part II 



 

 
                                

Page 5 

 

 Item(s) during whose consideration it is recommended that the public should be 
excluded because of the likelihood that exempt information would be disclosed 

 

None 

  

  

 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

POLICE AND CRIME PANEL AGENDA ITEM NO: 6 
11 January 2017 
 
 

DRAFT BUDGET SETTLEMENT 
Purpose 
 
1. This paper provides the panel with information on the draft budget and precept being 

considered. 
 

Background 
 
2. In October 2016 the initial Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) was produced 

and reviewed at my monitoring board.  The MTFS looks at the estimated financial 
position of the PCC over the next 4 years and the impact this has on my ability to 
commission services.  It acknowledges the fact that decisions I make today will 
impact my finances over the medium and long term.  In December 2016 the 
provisional settlement was received and the MTFS revised to reflect this. 
 

3. The revised MTFS is included as an appendix to this report however it should be 
noted that the assumptions included are superceded by actual information as it is 
received. 

  
The Settlement 
 
4. The following Police relevant information was announced in the December settlement; 
 

• a £0.812m cash reduction in Police Revenue funding for 2017-18, a 1.4% cut in 
funding for Wiltshire. 
 

• an increase in top slicing of Policing Funding in 2017-18 from £571m to £812m 
(mainly for Police Technology Programmes and Transformation Fund). 

  
• the setting of the council tax referendum threshold level at 2%. 

 
• the announcement that PCC’s with funds in the lowest quartile nationally can 

increase the council tax up to maximum of £5 per band D property without 
triggering the requirement for a referendum (Wiltshire are not in the lowest 
quartile). 

 
Council Tax Options 

 
5. I am currently considering 2 options surrounding the council tax; 

 
• Option A – To increase council tax by 1.9% 
• Option B – To maintain council tax at the 2016-17 level 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



6. The table below shows the estimated funds I will have available under each option; 
 
 2016-17 

Budget 
2017-18 

0% CTax Inc 
2017-18 

1.9% CTax Inc 
Standard Funding available to 
commission services (including 
investment income) 

£105.446m £104.997m £105.789m 

Swindon PFI Specific Grant £2.067m £2.067m £2.067m 
Special Policing Specific Grant £1.130m £1.130m £1.130m 
Total £108.643m £108.194m £108.986m 
 

7. In addition to this I have central funding allocated to me to commission victims 
services and to support restorative justice.  Figures for 2017-18 have not yet been 
released.  In 2016-17 I received £0.826m of grant to commission these services.   
 

8. My considerations surrounding the options on a council tax increase focus on the long 
term funding position.  To not increase council tax at this opportunity will have 
considerable impacts on my future ability to commission policing and crime services.  
According to the HMIC Value for Money profiles Wiltshire receive £96 per head of 
population under the current formula.  This compares to a national average of £121 
per head and a most similar forces average of £107 per head.  Being the 6th lowest 
centrally funded PCC per head of population increases my reliance on council tax. 
 

9. A 1.9% increase in Council Tax will result in Wiltshire’s Band D council tax increasing 
from £167.10 to £170.27, a £3.17 increase.  The table below shows that even with no 
increases in the rest of the region Wiltshire will remain the lowest. 

  
 2016-17 Band D CTax Wiltshire 1.9% increase 

Gloucestershire £210.31  
Dorset £190.80  

Avon & Somerset £178.26  
Devon & Cornwall £172.84  

Wiltshire £167.10 £170.27 
 

10. These considerations surrounding local funding levels cannot occur without taking into 
account the central funding position.  60% of my funding derives from central grants.   
 

11. By having a large portion of my budget funded by grants any changes to central grants 
are important whilst any benefits surrounding increases in the local council tax base 
less significant. 

 
12. In calculating the funding available an increase in the council tax base has been 

included.  The increase for Wiltshire Council is 0.6% and Swindon Borough Council 
2.9%. The consolidated increase in the tax base is 1.2%.  The funding available also 
includes the collection fund surplus; this has provisionally reduced to £0.491m in 2017-
18 (£0.882m in 2016-17). 

 
Future Funding 

 
13. In recent years there has been a debate surrounding the policing funding formula.  

Due to our low funding per head of population it is reasonable to expect that a change 

Page 8



will benefit Wiltshire.  It was expected that the change would be implemented in 2017-
18 however this had been delayed and is now expected in 2018-19. 
 

14. The 2016-17 budget was produced using £1.605 of reserves with the expectation that 
our funding will increase.  Last years financial strategy recognised the possibility that 
the change may not occur and the implications this would have (the need for greater 
savings in future years).  Hence the 2017-18 budget requires additional savings to be 
delivered.  To help assist planning a level of reserves has been used to smooth the 
savings requirement between 2017-18 and 2018-19. 

 
  
Impact on the Chief Constable’s Budget 
 
15. With a 1.9% council tax increase the Chief Constable’s budget will rise by £0.091m to 

£103.107m, basically a standstill budget.  With no increase his funding reduces by 
£0.681m. 
 

16. This funding position should be considered against the unavoidable cost increases 
surrounding inflation, pay increases, pensions and the Apprenticeship levy.  Overall 
there are net costs pressures on the Chief Constable of £2.3m  The table below shows 
his budget requirement against funding levels which I may provide him in 2017-18; 
 

 0% CTax Inc 1.9% CTax Inc 
Budget Requirement £106.934m £106.934m 
Funding Available £102.335m £103.107m 
Proposed Reserve Use £1.439m £1.439m 
Shortfall (savings req.) £3.160m £2.388m 

 
   

Closing the Shortfall 
 
17. A strategy has been produced within the MTFS.  The table below outlines the plan with 

a 1.9% Council Tax Increase; 
 

 2017-18 
Workforce modernisation £0.350m 
5 Officer Reduction £0.220m 
Increase in Vacancy factor £0.382m 
Current Police Partnerships £0.100m 
Reduction in National Insurance and Pension Costs £0.360m 
General Efficiencies £0.300m 
Total Proposed Savings £1.712m 
Savings required with a 1.9% CTax Increase £2.388m 
Variance (additional savings required)  £0.676m 

 
18. The Chief Constable has been tasked to identify further savings to close the £0.676m 

gap. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



Reserves 
 
19. The reserves held by the PCC have been reviewed.   The value of the general reserve 

has been considered and I am advised that £2.6m (2.5% of the revenue budget) is 
acceptable.  A complete review of reserves has taken place with the outcome 
disclosed in Appendix D of the MTFS.  Some reserves have been removed or reduced 
to free up funds. With these plans it is estimated that revenue reserves will be £4.9m 
by 31 March 2018. 

 
Conclusion 
 
20. This paper shows the panel my MTFS and gives them my current thinking surrounding 

the 2017-18 precept.   I believe a £3.17 Band D increase per household per year is 
appropriate and I am now consulting the public on this. 
 
 
 

Angus Macpherson 
Police and Crime Commissioner 
  

Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



 
 

 
 
WILTSHIRE AND SWINDON POLICE AND CRIME PANEL AGENDA ITEM NO: 7 
11 January 2017 
 
 

DRAFT POLICE AND CRIME PLAN 2017-2020 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1.To provide the Police and Crime Panel (PCP) with a draft of the Police and Crime Plan 

(P&C Plan) 2017-20 for comment and to provide an update on the public consultation  
process. 

 
2. Background and Main Considerations for the Panel 

 
2.1. The P&C Plan sets the direction, priorities and resources for policing and community 

safety in the local area.  
 

2.2. Following the 2016 PCC election, the PCC is required to have a new P&C Plan in 
place before the end of 2016/17. 

 
2.3. As the P&C Plan was refreshed in 2015, the Plan for 2017-20 provides more of an 

update and refinement to the current direction. The Plan retains four priorities with the 
context and themes of reducing demand, greater service integration, the community 
policing model and financial challenges. 

 
2.4. The PCP support in developing the Plan in 2016 was crucial. The performance 

mechanisms will not change but are refreshed to reflect the updates in the Plan.  
 

3. Police and Crime Plan 2017-20 
 
3.1. The draft Plan attached is the public consultation version and replaces the earlier 

version shared with the PCP. 
 

3.2. The Plan retains four priorities with the context and themes of reducing demand, 
greater service integration, the community policing model and financial challenges. 
 

3.3. The P&C Plan is a refinement of the previous Plan and is informed by the Chief 
Constable’s operational advice on threat, risk and harm. 
 

3.4. The Plan draws together the collective effort across a range of individual organisations 
and partnerships to keep the people of Wiltshire and Swindon safe. 

 
3.5. This is a public document and as such technical policing terms have been minimised 

and there will be an increased use of infographics. 
Page 1 of 2 

 Page 45

Agenda Item 7



 
 

3.6. The Plan is concise and increased in focus on the areas where improvements are 
needed. It is not a checklist on all policing and community safety activity. 

 
3.7. Performance against the Plan will continue in the same way with updated deep dive 

and performance measures. 
 

3.8. The financial details are taken from the Medium Term Financial Plan. 
 

4. Consultation 
 

4.1. The public consultation on the P&C Plan 2017-20 and the policing precept are running 
simultaneously. It began on 3 January 2017 and will close on 27 January 2017. 
 

4.2. The consultation has been published in local media, social media and through area 
boards, parish councils and community groups. 

 
4.3. The PCC will be holding public Q&A sessions throughout January on the P&C Plan, 

it’s priorities and the policing precept. 
 

4.4. There is a short survey for members of the public to complete and provide feedback 
on the new Plan. 
 

4.5. Stakeholders and partners have seen earlier versions of the Plan, continuing to 
provide comment in this consultation period. 

 
4.6. Comments and feedback will be considered by the PCC and a final version is planned 

for publication mid-February 2017. 
 

5. Recommendations 
 

5.1 Panel members are asked for their feedback and comment on the Plan and to inform 
its development during this consultation phase. 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 Page 46



Ver. 1.2   DRAFT 

 

 
 
 

DOCUMENT CONTROL SHEET 

Name of document: Police and Crime Plan 2017-20 
Version: 1.1 
Status: PUBLIC DRAFT 
Classification: PROTECT 
Owner: Angus Macpherson 
Date of this version: 20/12/16 
Produced by: Naji Darwish 
Synopsis and outcomes of consultation 
undertaken: 

3rd Police and Crime Plan for Wiltshire and 
Swindon setting the strategic direction for policing  

Approved by:  
Date ratified:  
Copyholders: OPCC office, Wiltshire Police 
Next review due: PCP, public consultation 3rd January 
Enquiries to: Naji.darwish@wiltshire.pcc.pnn.gov.uk 

 
Change control from previous version: 0.2 – PCC and CEO comments 
 0.2 – Paul Deal comments 

 0.31 – agreement with John Flynn on wording 
related to CCC 

 0.32 – inclusion of feedback from Wiltshire Police 
SCT 

 1.0 – Pam Gough comments 

 1.1 – Editorial, updating of financial information 
and spent chart 

 1.2 – Comments from Clare Mills 
  

  

Wiltshire & Swindon - OPCC   Page 1 of 15 
 Page 47



Ver. 1.2   DRAFT 

Police and Crime Plan 2017-20 – Wiltshire and Swindon 

As PCC my role is to ensure that the people of Wiltshire and Swindon are kept safe. l make sure that 
the police and justice system meets the needs of Wiltshire and Swindon and that Wiltshire Police 
delivers an efficient, effective and trusted service. 

My ambition is to make you as safe as possible, providing extra protection and support to the most 
vulnerable people, whether that is at home, at work, on the street or online. 

Wiltshire is a safe predominately rural county. However, we need to be ever vigilant as criminal threats 
evolve and become more complex. Technological change has opened a new space for offenders to 
operate in. This means that the way the police operate will be very different. Police visibility and 
security are as important in the “virtual” world as in the physical one.  

We are at risk of online abuse in the home, and of becoming a victim of internet fraud by offenders 
outside the UK. Organised crime gangs and terrorist attack the fabric of our communities, targeting the 
vulnerable for their own ends. This means our view of frontline policing has to change. I want 
communities to recognise the importance of all frontline services. Community policing teams are the 
most visible part of policing, but it is vital that we recognise that less visible frontline services also keep 
us safe. There are police officers and staff who are investigating crimes and bringing offenders to 
justice, teams protecting children and vulnerable adults every day and services whose aim is to stop 
crime before it happens.  

Offenders often target people because of their vulnerability. To protect the most vulnerable I expect 
the police to work with other agencies and the public to make sure those at greatest risk are protected. 
The police play a vital role in keeping our communities safe, protecting children and vulnerable adults. 
Eighty percent of calls to the police are not related to criminality but to other demands such as 
supporting people suffering mental health crisis. Increasingly the police are supporting and protecting 
people in crisis and stepping in when there are no other services available. Wiltshire Police officers 
and staff perform this role with professionalism, but we must do more with our public service partners 
to make sure vulnerable people are protected and receive the best support possible from the most 
appropriate agency. The Chief Constable and I are already working with public service leaders from 
across Wiltshire and Swindon to address these challenges. As PCC, I have a role to bring partners 
together and make sure they are as effective as possible in keeping the people of Wiltshire and 
Swindon safe. 

In addition, and at the heart of our approach, is a stronger relationship between victims of crime and 
the criminal justice service. I want to ensure that victims receive all the help and support to which they 
are entitled under the Code of Practice for Victims of Crime. I have seen the power and impact that 
victims and offenders sharing their experiences can have and I want all victims to have access to 
restorative justice. 

 

Wiltshire & Swindon - OPCC   Page 2 of 15 
 Page 48



Ver. 1.2   DRAFT 

 

Figure 1 Typical daily demand in Wiltshire Police 

Funding challenges 

The new threats and demands faced by police are combined with reductions in funding. Since 2010 
Wiltshire Police have saved £17m, (the equivalent of over 400 police officers) and more savings need 
to be found. Funding for policing is only static if PCCs increase the policing precept by 1.9 percent. 
This static funding is against the backdrop of increasing complexity of demand, cost increases and 
impact of reductions across other public services. 

I am challenging central government to secure more money for Wiltshire as the current system of 
central funding is unfair to small, rural forces such as Wiltshire. I am pleased the Policing minister is 
reviewing the funding formula as it does not reflect the demand police forces face and the additional 
costs to police rural communities. 

Under the current system, this means I have less money to allocate to the Chief Constable to keep 
you safe in comparison to other police force areas. Wiltshire receives £10 less per person from 
government compared to other similar police forces and £25 per person less than the England and 
Wales average. Combined with the lowest policing precept in the south west, Wiltshire Police have the 
third lowest funding per head of population. I will not only continue to lobby central government to 
revise the way policing is funded but I will seek the views of residents across Wiltshire and Swindon to 
inform my decision in setting the policing precept.  

Despite this, Wiltshire continues to be awarded “good” grading by Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of 
Constabulary (HMIC). Wiltshire is a force with overall strong performance and it is leading the way in 
leadership and police modernisation. This is an excellent achievement for any force, but remarkable 
given the low level of funding. 

Wiltshire & Swindon - OPCC   Page 3 of 15 
 Page 49



Ver. 1.2   DRAFT 
Community policing at the core 

I want policing to be delivered by local policing teams, with police officers, staff, volunteers, special 
constables and other public agencies taking responsibility for their communities. This is the ethos of 
community policing that has been rolled out across Wiltshire and Swindon in 2016. I want to explore 
further opportunities to develop and embed this model with other police services and partners to keep 
you safe. The premise is simple; to keep people safe, policing needs to be part of our communities. It 
is the frontline service provision that needs to work with our communities, community safety partners, 
parish councils, GPs and hospitals, mental health workers, young people, older people, businesses, 
farmers and community leaders.  

Local communities also need to be protected by specialist services that tackle highly complex and 
more specialised capability. The complexity of the services that combat counter terrorism, organised 
crime or the specialism of firearms, dogs and roads policing, mean that sharing with other forces 
makes both operational and financial sense. However, it is essential these teams still connect with 
local communities and their community policing teams. Building strong community relationships, 
identifying possible victims or offenders is essential to protecting our communities from organised 
crime, exploitation of children and the vulnerable and the threat of terrorism. 

We need to be protected from all threats, not just visible ones. We need to protect those who cannot 
protect themselves. We need to use the finite money to do this in the most efficient way possible.  

This will involve changing the way policing is delivered and making decisions about where money 
should be directed and where savings should come from. This plan outlines what we will focus on to 
make this happen, underpinned by the policing advice of the Chief Constable and the views of the 
public.  

My priorities for the next four years 

Priority 1. Prevent crime and keep people safe 

Priority 2. Protect the most vulnerable in society 

Priority 3. Put victims, witnesses and communities at the heart of everything we do 

Priority 4. Secure a trusted, quality and efficient police service 

My commitments to you 

I will: 

1. Ensure the public can trust the Chief Constable, police officers and staff to act with legitimacy 
in accordance with the code of ethics 

 
2. Be open and honest about the threats, risks and harm facing us all,  and have a genuine 

conversation both about how we can address them and about the difficult decisions that have 
to be made as to where we spend money 
 

3. Ensure that frontline policing is delivered within local communities where police officers, staff, 
partners and the public work collaboratively to keep their communities safe 
 

Wiltshire & Swindon - OPCC   Page 4 of 15 
 Page 50



Ver. 1.2   DRAFT 
4. Push for collaboration and innovation across police and public services that is in the interest of 

local people 
 

5. Make sure that Wiltshire Police have access to specialist policing and efficient support services 
that they need to protect our communities  

Wiltshire & Swindon - OPCC   Page 5 of 15 
 Page 51



Ver. 1.2   DRAFT 
Priority 1. Prevent crime and keep people safe 

 
The first function of a policing service is to prevent, respond to and investigate crime. To achieve this it 
must be a collaboration with partners and local communities. I want crime to be prevented where 
possible by reducing harm and risk of crime and by making our local communities a part of how we 
keep people safe.  

 
I will ensure the following: 
 

 
1) Wiltshire Police and partners will understand and respond effectively to local communities’ 

concerns and priorities 

This will involve: 

• Wiltshire Police continuing to increase the accuracy of recorded crime  
• Local communities continuing to be satisfied with the service they receive from Wiltshire 

Police 
• Community Policing being embedded into the fabric of communities 
• Police informing the public about how they are keeping them safe  

 
2) Preventing crime and reducing harm by working with local communities 

I will make sure: 

• Wiltshire Police increase the numbers of people involved in helping to keep 
communities safe by volunteering for ‘watch’ and cadet schemes or signing up to 
community messaging 

• Wiltshire Police recruit and maintain 500 Special Constables and make them an integral 
part of community policing teams  

• Wiltshire Police deal with rural crime as a core part of community policing teams, 
supported by the rural crime partnership and the Special Constabulary 

• Wiltshire Police work with community safety partnerships to improve the management 
of evening and night time economies in Salisbury, Swindon, Chippenham, and other 
larger market towns 

• Local authorities, police and fire work together to improve road safety through 
engineering, education and enforcement  

 
3) Wiltshire Police is effective at preventing crime and reducing threats 

 
Wiltshire Police will: 

 
• Maintain the rating of “good” by Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC) in 

its inspection of effectiveness 
• Increase the capacity to work with partners to embed crime prevention in policing and 

local communities 
• Work to protect the most vulnerable from becoming victims of cyber crime 
• Work to disrupt the efforts of organised crime and drug gangs to infiltrate communities 

and work effectively with local partners, including work to reduce exploitation of children 
and adults 

• Improve criminal investigations to provide an effective service  
 

Wiltshire & Swindon - OPCC   Page 6 of 15 
 Page 52



Ver. 1.2   DRAFT 
How will we know the plan is working 
 
There is  no single measure that can be used to determine if crime is being prevented and people kept 
safe, but we will assess a range of information, including: 
 

• Recorded crime comparators 
• Level of anti-social behaviour 
• Demand on the police service and other partners 
• Positive outcome rates and investigation indicators 
• Level of satisfaction with police services 
• Reduction in numbers of road deaths and road traffic collisions 
• Number of special constables and hours deployed 
• Number of people involved in volunteering and support to keep their communities safe 
• HMIC assessment and inspection reports for effectiveness 
• Reduction in the risks to communities and the impact of organised crime and gangs 

   

Wiltshire & Swindon - OPCC   Page 7 of 15 
 Page 53



Ver. 1.2   DRAFT 
Priority 2. Protect the most vulnerable in society 

Public services and policing must protect vulnerable people. They are at greatest risk of being victims 
of crime. They need more support from a range of public services to cope with and recover from the 
impact of crime. Vulnerable people are also at greater risk of exploitation which can lead them into 
patterns of offending.  Working with partners to find more effective and innovative ways of protecting 
vulnerable people will prevent demand on policing and other services. 
 

1) Explore the opportunities for, and influence the coordination of, public protection and 
safeguarding services across the community safety partnerships and safeguarding boards to 
better understand and protect those at risk of harm. 

This work will include:  

• Using “single view” to develop new information and service models to protect victims of 
crime and introduce the technology to help in how we protect vulnerable people with our 
partners 

• Developing a long term plan with partners to improve public protection response across 
police, local authorities and health providers 

• Exploring opportunities to integrate preventative services with local authorities, the fire and 
rescue service and other partners 

• Supporting the Chief Constable to implement the systems review of public protection and 
investigative review to ensure policing services are effectively protecting victims of sexual 
offences, child sexual exploitation and domestic abuse  
 

2) Reduce demand on local policing by protecting vulnerable people 

This activity will include: 

• Working with partners to support troubled families and individuals with complex needs  
• With Wiltshire and Swindon councils, commission services that protect and support victims 

of domestic abuse 
• Working with partners to protect and support those at risk of harm, and those who have 

been harmed by sexual abuse and violence 
• With Wiltshire and Swindon clinical commissioning groups, spend £TBC on mental health 

triage support in the police control room to help those in mental health crisis get the 
support and care they need 

• Conducting a system review with NHS partners to improve how those in mental health 
crisis are provided with places of safety 

• With Wiltshire and Swindon councils, commission services to reduce the harm and prevent 
crime caused by alcohol and substance misuse 

• Working with local authorities to ensure that people who go missing are protected, kept 
safe and preventing further incidents 

How will we know the plan is working 
 
There is no single measure that can be used to determine if policing is protecting the vulnerable. Much 
of the work in this priority is focused on reducing the risk and harm of individuals and their families, but 
we will assess a range of information, including: 
 

• Joint Inspections of public protection, children and health services  
• HMIC inspections covering vulnerability, quality of investigations 

Wiltshire & Swindon - OPCC   Page 8 of 15 
 Page 54



Ver. 1.2   DRAFT 
• Safeguarding board annual reports 
• Use of custody as a place of safety for those in mental health crisis 
• Reduction in demand on services by addressing those of highest risk  

Wiltshire & Swindon - OPCC   Page 9 of 15 
 Page 55



Ver. 1.2   DRAFT 
Priority 3. Put victims, witnesses and communities at the heart of 
everything we do 
All victims should be kept informed and supported by police and criminal justice services. All justice 
agencies in Wiltshire should comply with the Victim Code of Practice. Crime affects everyone 
differently and we need to provide tailored support to help people cope and recover. My office and 
Wiltshire Police work with Wiltshire Criminal Justice Board (WCJB) to deliver joint work to improve the 
justice system and support victims including: 

1) Ensuring there are high quality services to help victims of crime and reduce harm by:  
 
• Reviewing support services available to victims of crime to ensure needs are being met - 

building on the success of the Horizon Victim and Witness Care team, supporting victims in 
getting support and guidance through the criminal justice system 

• Championing the use of restorative justice to allow victims and offenders to communicate 
to repair the harm and find a positive way forward. Restorative Together, our multi-agency 
partnership led by the OPCC, will increase capacity by training volunteers, police officers 
and other agencies to be able to use restorative justice 

• Working with NHS England on the commissioning of the sexual assault referral centre 
(SARC) and work within a multi-agency partnership to ensure on-going pathways of 
support  for victims of sexual offences  

• Working with health partners on a pilot advocacy service for children and young people 
who are victims of sexual offences 

• Ensuring courts are listing cases in the most efficient way to reduce timescales, the number 
of so-called cracked and ineffective trials and the number of pre-trial hearings  

• Extending the use of video technology such as giving evidence by video link, virtual courts 
and body worn cameras 

 
2) Preventing people from becoming victims by preventing offending and reoffending by: 

 
• With the National Probation Service and Community Rehabilitation Company, reviewing 

and expanding the Integrated Offender Management (IOM) service to include violent 
offenders 

• Leading and resourcing youth offending teams to prevent young people at risk of offending 
as early as possible and prevent entry into the criminal justice system 

• Commissioning prevention programmes to make domestic abuse perpetrators face up to 
their abuse 

How will we know the plan is working 
 
There is no single measure that can be used to determine if we are putting victims, witnesses and 
communities at the heart of everything we do but we will assess a range of information, including: 

• Victim, witness and community satisfaction levels 
• Feedback from victims and witnesses who have used support services 
• Feedback from victims who engage with Restorative Justice 
• Prevention of young people entering the criminal justice system  
• Criminal justice indicators 
• Reductions of reoffending in IOM 

Wiltshire & Swindon - OPCC   Page 10 of 15 
 Page 56



Ver. 1.2   DRAFT 
Priority 4. Secure a trusted, quality and efficient police service 
The changing demands faced by the police alongside the financial challenges mean we must be 
innovative and continually improve. I will make sure that police officers, staff and volunteers have the 
tools to keep you safe and, as far as possible, protect frontline services. 

1) Wiltshire Police delivers a high quality police service that is efficient in its understanding and 
use of resources by 
 
• The Force maintaining the rating of “good” by Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary 

(HMIC) in the efficiency inspection 
• Responding effectively and proportionately to issues of performance to reassure 

communities and identify any emerging problems 
 

2) Wiltshire Police continues to embrace innovation and technology to make a real difference to 
frontline services by 
 
• Making it easier for the public to communicate with the police by providing more services 

online including reporting crime and intelligence, updates on enquiries and buying of 
licenses 

• Investing in ICT platforms that are compliant, agile and cloud-based and meet the needs of 
officers and staff, allowing police and other public sector partners to exchange and make 
use of information 

 
3) Wiltshire Police and public service partners operate more efficiently by: 

 
• Conducting a system review of the crime and communication centre to make sure the 

needs of emergency and non-emergency callers are met and increase the way the public 
can contact Wiltshire Police for non-emergencies 

• Policing effectively across boundaries by iteratively enhancing the way our tri-force 
collaborations work, in order to  deliver an improved service to the public 

• Recognising that staff welfare, morale and wellbeing is vital to the efficiency of the force to 
deliver a modern, flexible workforce that responds to the needs of our communities 

• Reviewing the efficiency of our enabling services to provide value for money 
• Announcing my estates strategy for the next five years, including the disposal of sites that 

are no longer required for policing. Savings will be used to close the financial gap and 
protect frontline services as far as possible 

• Continuing to share facilities with Wiltshire Council and improve and redesign the retained 
police estate to make sure it is suitable for 21st century policing 
 

4) Have a police service that is trusted, professional and respectful to the public by: 
• Maintaining the rating of “good” by Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC) 

under the inspection of legitimacy 
• Wiltshire Police having a more diverse, inclusive and empowered workforce that reflects 

our communities 
• Implementing the changes outlined in the Policing Act in relation to police complaints and 

build on our unique independent appeal process 

How will we know the plan is working 
There is no single measure that can be used to determine if we are providing a trusted, quality and 
efficient police service but we will assess a range of information, including: 

 
Wiltshire & Swindon - OPCC   Page 11 of 15 
 Page 57



Ver. 1.2   DRAFT 
• Maintaining “good” rating from HMIC for efficiency 
• Maintaining “good” rating from HMIC for legitimacy 
• HMIC Leadership assessments 
• Online services in place and being used by the public 
• Estates strategy implemented 
• Wiltshire Police workforce figures 
• Staff satisfaction and morale 
• Financial indicators 

  

Wiltshire & Swindon - OPCC   Page 12 of 15 
 Page 58



Ver. 1.2   DRAFT 
What we spend your money on 

As Commissioner, I determine how much money I allocate to Wiltshire Police and to the non-policing 
services that support this plan. The money to provide policing services comes from central 
government and the local policing precept.  

Whilst I will consult on precept decisions each year, the two scenarios below show the benefit even a 
modest increase in the policing precept can make in reducing the funding gap caused by reductions in 
central funding. Any further savings I can make from efficiencies will be redirected to frontline services 
and the priorities of this plan. 

Total income and allocation of funding based on 0% police and crime precept increase: 

 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 
Income £million 
Central funding 62.589 61.786 60.994 
Police and crime precept – 0%  42.158 42.783 43.418 
Other income 0.250 0.250 0.250 
Total Income available to PCC 104.997 104.819 104.662 
 
Total income and allocation of funding based on 1.9% police and crime precept increase: 

 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 
Income £million 
Central funding 62.589 61.786 60.994 
Police and crime precept – 1.9 % rise 42.950 44.407 45.911 
Other income 0.250 0.250 0.250 
Total Income available to PCC 105.789 106.442 107.156 
 

 

 

 

 

Wiltshire & Swindon - OPCC   Page 13 of 15 
 Page 59



Ver. 1.2   DRAFT 
Grants and commissioning 
 
As Police and Crime Commissioner I allocate funds in order to deliver my police and crime priorities. 
Most of the funding I receive I allocate to the Chief Constable to provide an efficient and effective 
policing service, or for a specific requirement I believe the police are best placed to provide alongside 
policing services, such as community speed watch. 
 
Wiltshire Community Foundation runs a small grants scheme on my behalf, which awards community 
and voluntary grants to projects that meet the priorities of this plan. 
 
I have identified the areas where I will commit more resources to work with the community and 
voluntary sector. I want to encourage innovative approaches to providing services in these areas.   
 
More information about how you can support me in this will be provided on my website. 
 
How I listen and talk to you 
 
I am responsible for making sure the legitimate concerns of the public on policing are dealt with.  
Fundamental to my role is to talk to and listen to individuals and communities across Wiltshire and 
Swindon in a variety of ways.   
 
Over my next term I will do the following: 
 

• Hold monthly online forums through my Facebook and Twitter accounts 
• Be active across large community events in Wiltshire and Swindon 
• Keep you informed of key issues through a monthly blog on my website 
• Consult with you regularly about key matters 
• Visit and consult with key community groups/projects 
• Expand the channels and ways in which you can make contact with me and/or give me your 

views 
 
 

Wiltshire & Swindon - OPCC   Page 14 of 15 
 Page 60



Ver. 1.2   DRAFT 
 
How the system works 
 

 

For further information on this plan and my work as your Police and Crime Commissioner please go to www.wiltshire-
pcc.gov.uk/Home.aspx 

Wiltshire & Swindon - OPCC   Page 15 of 15 
 

P
age 61

http://www.wiltshire-pcc.gov.uk/Home.aspx
http://www.wiltshire-pcc.gov.uk/Home.aspx


T
his page is intentionally left blank



Questions from members of the Police and Crime Panel 
 
 
 

 Date 
rec’d 

Submitted 
by 

Question Response 
given 

Response 

1.2 01/12/16 Cllr 
Richard 
Britton 

What applications has the PCC made to 
the Home Office Police Transformation 
Fund and with what outcomes? 

05/01/17 The following bids have been made to the Police Transformation Fund with the outcomes 
stated. 
 
Round 1 – 2016/17 
 

Lead 

 
Partners 

Bid 
title/Descripti

on 
2016/17 
Award 

2017/18 
Award 

Avon & 
Somerset 

Constabulary 

Gloucestershire 
Constabulary   

South West 
service 

platform. 

£686,500 £0 

Wiltshire Police 

 
Round 2 – 30 November 2016 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Lead Partners Bid 
title/description 

2016/17 
Award 

2017/18 
Award 

2018/19 
Award 

Avon and 
Somerset 

Wiltshire, 
Gloucestershire 

Avon & Somerset 
Criminal Justice 
Service 
Transformation – 
Proof of Concept 

£190,000 £0 £0 

1.2 08/12/16 Cllr 
Richard 
Britton 

From your explanation of the situation 
regarding the withdrawal of Avon & 
Somerset from the Tri-Force Collaboration 

05/01/17 Avon and Somerset will be reviewing their own position but I did not mention they will be 
pursuing back office collaborations with third parties. Indeed I believe they will be looking 
to do this by themselves. Their main objective is to achieve significant savings within a 

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 9



Programme I understood that A & S are to 
reconsider their position in six months’ 
time. In the meantime I understand that 
they will pursue back office collaborations 
with third parties. 
 
If this understanding is correct is it not the 
case that in six months’ time A & S will 
have set in hand developments likely to 
increase the barriers to collaboration with 
Wiltshire and Gloucestershire? 
 
Again, if this is an accurate statement is it 
not the case that in six months’ time A & S 
will be even less likely (and less able) to 
have an interest in collaborations with 
Wiltshire and Gloucestershire? 
 
With this in mind I asked for an 
explanation of what will happen “in six 
months” but despite lengthy responses 
from both you and Mr Kilgallen I do not 
feel I received an answer. 

much tighter timescale than the collaboration envisaged so they need to drive this 
forward themselves.  
 
It is indeed possible that by pausing the collaboration in this way, there could be 
increased barriers to collaboration by A&S with Wiltshire and Gloucestershire. However, 
Wiltshire and Gloucestershire are exploring options for us to work together in other ways, 
such as having an IT solution which meets the requirements of both forces and which can 
be bought off the shelf at a national level, which could lead to more options to 
collaborate with others at a regional and national level in the future. However, these 
options are still being explored. We cannot rule in or out further collaboration with Avon 
and Somerset until we know which directions we will all be taking going forwards. In the 
meantime, we can continue to work together on other matters associated with existing 
Tri Force operations, namely guns, dogs and traffic and serious crime.   
 
We cannot anticipate what A&S will wish to do in six months time with regard to 
collaboration. They have to identify their own position first.  
 
As stated at the Panel meeting, the position with regard to A&S remains unclear – they 
have to decide what they wish to do, but Wiltshire and Gloucestershire remain keen to 
work together and are exploring options to do this. We cannot provide a full explanation 
of what will happen in six months time as it is a constantly moving feast and positions 
may have significantly changed by then.  

1.3 08/12/16 Cllr 
Richard 
Britton 

At yesterday’s meeting of the Police and 
Crime Panel our discussion of the Tri-
Force Collaboration Programme revolved 
around the withdrawal of Avon & 
Somerset and we did not touch on the 
more positive aspect of ongoing 
collaborations with the remaining partner 
– Gloucestershire. 
 
Please would you confirm that your plans 

05/01/17 Plans are unchanged in that both Gloucestershire and Wiltshire do wish to continue to 
work together. The scope of what will be included in this arrangement is still being 
discussed. An update will be provided to the next meeting of the Police and Crime Panel.  

P
age 64



for such collaborations with 
Gloucestershire are unchanged by the 
withdrawal of Avon & Somerset? 

 

P
age 65



T
his page is intentionally left blank



                                              

 

Police and Crime Panel   
Forward Work Plan  
Please note: this is a working document which is subject to change 
 

Date Location Provisional Agenda Items 

11th January 
2017 
10am-2pm 

Trowbridge, County Hall 

 PCC Budget 2017/18 and MTFS 

 Tri-Force collaboration programme 

 Member Questions 

 Community Policing model – report on success measures 

 PCC Blog 

2nd February 
2017 
10am-2pm 

Chippenham, Monkton Park 

 Formal consideration of PCC Precept proposal 

 Victim Support Service (Horizon) update 

 Tri-Force collaboration programme 

 Member Questions 

 PCC Blog 

2nd March 
2017 
10am-2pm 

Salisbury, City Hall 

 Quarterly data (Q3)– Risk / Performance / Finance / Complaints  

 Tri-Force collaboration programme 

 Member Questions 

 PCC Blog 

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 11



                                              

 

29th June 
2017 
10:30am-1pm 

Devizes, Corn Exchange 

 Election of PCP Chair and Vice Chair 

 PCC Annual Report 

 Quarterly data (Q4)– Risk / Performance / Finance / Complaints  

 Tri-Force collaboration programme 

 Member Questions 

 PCC Blog 

14th 
September 
2017 
10:30am-1pm 

Trowbridge, County Hall 

 Quarterly data (Q1)– Risk / Performance / Finance / Complaints  

 Update on restorative justice 

 Tri-Force collaboration programme 

 Member Questions 

 PCC Blog 

7th December 
2017 
10:30am-1pm 

Chippenham, Monkton Park 

 Quarterly data (Q2)– Risk / Performance / Finance / Complaints  

 Tri-Force collaboration programme 

 Member Questions 

 PCC Blog 

18th January 
2018 
10:30am-1pm 

Salisbury, City Hall 

 PCC Budget 2018/19 and MTFS 

 Tri-Force collaboration programme 

 Member Questions 

 PCC Blog 

P
age 68



                                              

 

22nd February 
2018 
10:30am-1pm 

Swindon, Civic Centre 

 Formal consideration of PCC Precept proposal 

 Victim Support Service (Horizon) update 

 Tri-Force collaboration programme 

 Task group updates 

 PCC Diary report 

22nd March, 
2018 
10:30am-1pm 

Devizes, Corn Exchange 

 Quarterly data (Q3)– Risk / Performance / Finance / Complaints  

 Tri-Force collaboration programme 

 Task group updates 

 PCC Diary report 

 

 

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 PCC Budget 2017/18 and MTFS
	4 MTFS v2 Dec 2016

	7 Police and Crime Plan
	2 PandC Plan Appendix

	9 Member Questions
	11 Forward Work Plan

